
 
AGENDA OF THE 

UTAH STATE BUILDING BOARD MEETING   
Wednesday, June 7, 2017 

Utah State Capitol, Room 250 
350 N State Street 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
9:00 am 

 
(Action) 1. Approval of Minutes from the April 5, 2017 Business Meeting 
   
(Action) 2. Approval of Minutes from the May 3, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
(Action) 3. DHS-USDC: Building Demolition Request 
 
(Action) 4. DHS-DJJS: Request for Programming of the Wasatch Youth Center 
 
(Action) 5. DHS-DJJS: Capital Improvement Transfer Request 
 
(Action) 6. DFCM: Capital Improvement Reallocation Request for USDC 
 
(Action) 7. University of Utah: Request for Approval of Energy Efficiency Improvements 
 
(Action) 8. University of Utah: Request for Approval of the Jon M. Huntsman Center Scoreboard 

Replacement 
 
(Information) 9. State Building Board: Facility Condition Assessment Program and Preventative 

Maintenance Audit Annual Report 
 
(Information) 10. Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 
   
(Information) 11. Administrative Report for DFCM 
 
  12. Future Agenda Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice of Special Accommodation During Public Meetings - In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
individuals needing special accommodations (including auxiliary communicative aids and services) during this meeting should 
notify Patty Yacks 538-3010 (TDD 538-3696) at least three days prior to the meeting.  This information and all other Utah State 
Building Board information is available on DFCM web site at: http://dfcm.utah.gov/dfcm/utah-state-building-board.html 

http://dfcm.utah.gov/dfcm/utah-state-building-board.html


 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From:  Jeff Reddoor 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the April 5, 2017 Business Meeting 

 
 

 
Attached for your review and approval are the minutes from the April 5, 2017 business meeting. 



Utah State Building Board 
 

 

BUSINESS MEETING 
 

April 5, 2017 
 
 

 

 
MINUTES 

Members in Attendance:  
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Lisa Barrager 
Fred Hunsaker 
Gordon Snow  
 
Guests in Attendance: 
Rep. Froerer   House of Representatives  
Sen. Harper   Utah State Senate 
Jeff Reddoor   Building Board 
Patty Yacks   Building Board 
Ken Hansen   DAS 
Marilee Richins  DAS 
Bruce Whittington  DFCM 
Mike Ambre   DFCM 
Jim Russell   DFCM 
Debbie Kurzban  Attorney General's Office 
Sherry Ruesch  Dixie State University 
Joseph Demma  UCAT 
Comm. Woolstenhulme UCAT 
Tyler Brinkerhoff  UCAT 
Ken Nye   University of Utah 
Rich Amon    USHE 
Ben Berrett   Utah State University 

 
On Wednesday, May 3, 2017, the Utah State Building Board held a business meeting in Room 
4114 of the State Office Building, in Salt Lake City, Utah. The meeting was called into order at 
12:37 PM. 

 
 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE AND CHANGES IMPACTING THE BOARD 

Chair Carnahan opened the floor to Sen. Harper and Rep. Froerer to address issues that came out 
of the legislative session.  Rep. Froerer began by focusing on bonding issues, specifically related 
to the DXATC project.  Bonding can only be approved through legislative approval.  There needs 



Utah State Building Board: Business Meeting Minutes 
April 5, 2017 
Page 2 

   

 

to be controls implemented to ensure that project scope and costs reflect what was originally 
approved. 
 
The second issue involves the DPS Brigham City building which was a last minute appropriation 
request.  There was not enough research completed in the initial stages of this request.  It was later 
determined that the request was approximately $1M under what was needed to complete the 
project.  This shortage is not a reflection of the Building Board or DFCM.  However, Rep. Forerer 
reinforced the importance of having projects follow the standard request process. 
 
Sen. Harper would like UCAT to bring forward recommendations to consider as the Building Board 
and DFCM work on formalizing the bond verification process.    

 
Mr. Snow asked Rep. Forerer and Sen. Harper to comment on whether they would like the Board 
to require a certification of funds for non-State projects.  Currently, there is no intent language 
addressing this procedure, however the Board believes it is good practice and has requested 
institutions provide this documentation prior to giving their approval.  Sen. Harper confirmed that 
there were amendments to Rep. Froerer’s bill that were not drafted.  Funding certification for non-
State projects was one out of five other amendments that were not put into code.  Sen. Harper and 
Rep. Forerer believe that the certification process is absolutely critical to move projects forward 
and would like the Board to continue this procedure. 

 
Commissioner Woolstenhulme confirmed that the Board of Trustee’s met last week and agreed to 
move forward with the lease bond agreement under new intent language for the DXATC project.  
He thanked everyone for their work on this issue.  Commissioner Woolstenhulme also confirmed 
that internal polices have been developed to keep his office involved in the entire building process; 
from request to ribbon cutting.  
 
Rep. Froerer recommends that additional information be collected to certify donor contributions.  
He referenced a $47.5M donation for the University of Utah’s MED Center that would no longer be 
available if the State did not commit.  The IGG requests that more information be provided under 
circumstances that a donor stipulates their contribution. 
 
The Board recommends that Mr. Reddoor work with counsel to draft a rule to certify funds for non-
State funded projects.  
 
Mr. Snow expressed concerns with both the use of student fees and the criticality of need for Salt 
Lake Community’s request of a new student center.  Rep. Froerer has concerns with using student 
fees, especially for infrastructure requests.  Chair Carnahan considered having USHE and SLCC 
present their master plan to the Board, as this is under the Board’s purview, and how this request 
fits in.  Chair Carnahan also wants to know if this project has been approved by the Board of 
Trustees.  IGG will take into consideration concerns raised from the Board.   
 
Mr. Reddoor requested comments from Rep. Forerer and Sen. Harper on an allowable percentage 
of project overages and if there should be a set percentage for when a project should return back 
for legislative approval.  Mr. Russell stated the standard leeway is a 10% in overages.  Sen. Harper 
would like to bring this topic into one of the two IGG meetings scheduled this summer.  Mr. Reddoor 
brought up a significant accomplishment that the Board recently made by separating programing 
into it’s own phase.  Mr. Russell agrees that this change will be helpful in determining square 
footage.  However, there continues to be concern in estimating cost of construction, especially with 
escalation.  Chair Carnahan would like to continue to address this topic in an upcoming business 
meeting.            



Utah State Building Board: Business Meeting Minutes 
April 5, 2017 
Page 3 

   

 

 
Rep. Forerer asked Mr. Reddoor to provide an update on O&M.  The Board is now able to capture 
costs on an individual building level, approximately $207M in O&M expenditures were reported for 
FY16.  A database has been created to house these reported costs and the Board is working on a 
way to visually present the data for transparency purposes.  The Board is also currently working on 
developing a rule that will require agencies to report their O&M funding budget.  There are concerns 
on identifying where their revenue sources are coming from.  Mr. Reddoor stated that this rule 
would be focused on the budget for O&M as a whole in order to adequately fund existing facilities 
and to make comparisons on how O&M is distributed.  Mr. Reddoor is open to comments from 
stakeholder, institutions, and agencies in developing this rule.  Mr. Reddoor will start drafting this 
rule.  A finalized version will be reviewed by the Board for approval. 

 
Mr. Reddoor informed the Board of a rule change to the dates for when an agency can revise a 
project request.  Currently this deadline occurs in May.  This rule will be changed to allow for 
revisions up until the cost estimate is completed from DFCM.  A clear date will be determined. 

 
The final legislative update impacting the Board is that Mr. Reddoor’s position has been changed 
to an appointed Director position.  Mr. Bachman also informed the Board that procurement rules 
will also be developed for the Board.  There are also a number of five-year reviews that will be 
coming before the Board.    

 
 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

• Utah State Fair Park: Arena Naming Update 
• Update from DFCM on a new building standard for student housing 
• Capital development process update from USHE and UCAT 
• Formalize the land banking process 

o The Board will look into any potential changes , if needed, regarding the land 
banking list  

• Cost comparison on new construction versus leasing from DFCM to the Board 
• SUU: School of Business, groundbreaking on April 27 
• WSU: New Science Building, groundbreaking on May 9 
• UDC: New Prison, groundbreaking on June 15   



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From:  Jeff Reddoor 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: Approval of Minutes from the May 3, 2017 Board Meeting 

 
 

 
Attached for your review and approval are the minutes from the May 3, 2017 Board meeting. 



Utah State Building Board 
 

 

MEETING 
 

May 3, 2017 
 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Members in Attendance:  
Ned Carnahan, Chair 
Lisa Barrager 
Fred Hunsaker 
Gordon Snow 
Chip Nelson 
David Fitzsimmons  
 
Guests in Attendance: 
Jeff Reddoor   Building Board 
Patty Yacks   Building Board 
Tyson Gregory  Building Board 
Mike Smith   Building Board 
Alan Bachman  Attorney General 
Debbie Kurzban  Attorney General 
Simone Rudas  Attorney General 
Tani Downing  DAS 
Ken Hansen   DAS 
Jim Russell   DFCM 
Bruce Whittington  DFCM 
Dorothy Taylor  DFCM 
Wayne Christensen  DFCM 
Lee Fairbourn  DFCM 
Don Brinkerhoff  DHS 
Bob Kempe   UDC 
Sid Painar   AJC Architects 
Rich Arave   Arch Nexus 
Jim Nielson   Axis Architects 
Vicky Golie   Babcock Design 
Gabe Kramer  Envision Engineering 
Jodi Geroux   FFKR Architects 
Mark Bagley   Gordian Group 
Rachel Legree  Gordian Group 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2017 
Page 2 

 

Bryan Webb   Layton Construction 
Eric Tholen   Michael Baker 
Bob Askerlund  Salt Lake Community College 
Malin Francis  Salt Lake Community College 
Andrew Parrish  Southern Utah University 
Ben Johnson   Southern Utah University 
Jason Butikofer  Southern Utah University 
Jade Teran   Spectrum Engineers 
Joseph Demma  UCAT 
Tyler Brinkerhoff  UCAT 
Cory Higgins   University of Utah 
Ken Nye   University of Utah 
Rich Amon   USHE 
Ben Berrett   Utah State University 
Keith Buswell  Wadman Corp. 
Jennifer Bodine  Weber State University 

 
On Wednesday, May 3, 2017, the Utah State Building Board held a regularly scheduled meeting 
in Room 250 of the Utah State Capitol, in Salt Lake City, Utah. The meeting was called into 
order at 9:00 am. 

 
 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FROM THE APRIL 5, 2017 MEETING 

Chair Carnahan asked for comments or corrections to the minutes from the April Building Board 
Meeting. Mr. Snow indicated that there was an error to the motion for the University of Utah’s 
request for construction of the Kenneth and Sally Burbidge Athletic Academic Center expansion.  
The motion was documented that Mr. Snow created and seconded the motion, which is incorrect.  
Mr. Hunsaker created the motion and Mr. Snow seconded the motion 

 
MOTION:  Mr. Fitzsimmons moved to approve the minutes from the April 5, 2017 

Meeting contingent on the one correction. The motion was seconded by 
Mr. Snow and passed unanimously. 

 
 SOUTHERN UTAH UNIVERSITY: REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING, DESIGN, & 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW SPORTS PERFORMANCE CENTER 
Mr. Butikofer, Mr. Johnson, and Mr. Parrish from SUU presented a request for programming, 
design, and construction of a New Sports Performance Center.  This 8,000 sqft., prefabricated 
steel building will more than double the size of the current weight room.  The New Sports 
Performance Center will be used to train approximately 370 SUU athletes and 3,000 summer camp 
attendees.  SUU will also hold additional strength and conditioning clinics throughout the year for 
local high school coaches and athletes. This facility will be paid with privately donated funds from 
the Eccles Foundation and the Dave Carter family. 
 
Programing for this facility will occur from May to June of this year and is expected to cost $60K.  
Construction will then begin in July and be completed in October.  The cost of construction is 
estimated to be $810K.  O&M for this facility is expected to be $55K-58K annually, which will be 
paid for through private donations, athletic ticket sales, and corporate sponsorships.  No student 
fees or state funds will be requested for this facility.        
 
Mr. Nelson inquired if the cost of equipment has been factored into the project estimate. Mr. 
Butikofer confirmed that equipment costs have not been factored into the project estimate.  The 
cost for equipment is estimated to be $225K, which will come from private fundraising.  Mr. Nelson 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2017 
Page 3 

 

thanked SUU for their efforts in putting together a well-documented presentation for this request. 
 
$180K in donations is expected to be given to SUU in December, which is after the estimated 
completion date.  Mr. Snow inquired how SUU plans to pay for the remainder of the project if these 
funds are not in hand.  Mr. Johnson stated that private funds will be used to cover this gap; however 
SUU is working to have these funds in hand prior to project completion.  Mr. Butikofer confirmed 
that SUU will enter into a MOU with DFCM for this project. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Nelson moved to approve SUU’s request for programming, design, & 

construction of the new sports performance center.  The motion was second 
by Mr. Fitzsimmons and passed unanimously. 

 
 DFCM: PROJECT RESERVE TRANSFER REQUEST FOR SNOW COLLEGE CHILLER 

REPLACEMENT 
Mr. Reddoor presented this item on the behalf of DFCM.  DFCM has recently been made aware 
that the chiller located in the Snow College High Tech Building has failed and needs to be replaced.  
This project was submitted as a capital improvement request but was not approved for funding.  
The chiller failed after the Board released the approved capital improvement list for FY18.  A 
replacement is needed as building occupants have started to complain of uncomfortable 
conditions.  Therefore, per 63A-5-104, DFCM is requesting that $200K from the project reserve 
fund be approved for this project.  Snow College has a number of projects closing-out within the 
next month, which will contribute over $270K into the Project Reserve.  

 
MOTION:  Mr. Snow moved to approve DFCM’s project reserve transfer request for the 

Snow College chiller replacement.  The motion was second by Ms. Barrager 
and passed unanimously. 

 
 STATE BUILDING BOARD: NEW ADMINISTRATIVE RULE R23-3 FOR PLANNING, 

PROGRAMMING, REQUEST FOR CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE REPORTING FOR STATE OWNED FACILITIES 

Mr. Reddoor presented this item; he highlighted two proposed amendments to R23-3.  The first 
is that programing will be a separate phase from design and construction.  This change will allow 
for programing to proceed without the risk of phased funding a project.  The second is to revise 
the deadline for submitting changes to capitol development requests up until the hearings in 
October.  Mr. Bachman covered additional changes, which are listed below.    
 
1. Rule R23-3-10 (4) A capital development request by an agency described in Section 53B-1-

102 shall comply with Section 63A-5-104(2)(d) and the Board shall comply with Section 63A-
5-104(2)(e). 
 
[Note - (2)(e) relates to weighting requirements of the Board in submissions by the Board of 
Regents.] 

 
2. Rule R23-3-10 (6) - spelling typo - 11Notwithstanding" 

 
3. Rule R23-3-10{6) - add the following: 
 

Any modification under this Rule R 23-3-10(6) shall be for the purpose of a  correction, or to 
better meet the standards or requirements of this Rule R23-3-10. 

 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2017 
Page 4 

 

[Note - this complies with Section 63A-103{2)(d)(ii).] 
 

Mr. Reddoor recommends that the Board approve the filing of R23-3 as outlined above.  He will 
be meeting with DFCM and the Board of Regents on these amendments and will provide an 
update on this Rule to the Board in June. 

 
MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to approve filing of R23-3 for Planning, Programming, 

Request for Capital Development Projects and Operation and Maintenance 
Reporting for State Owned Facilities. The motion second by Mr. 
Fitzsimmons and passed unanimously. 

 
 UTAH STATE FAIR PARK: ARENA NAMING UPDATE 

Mr. Mullenax delivered an update on the Days of 47 Arena.  Construction is on schedule and is 
roughly 73% completed.  The project is estimated to be finished by the original completion date 
of July 1, 2017.  He commended the contractors for keeping this project on the original timeline 
despite wet conditions at the fair park.  The skeletal frame for the grandstand is complete and 
aluminum skin and seats have been installed.  Life safety systems will be in place by next week.  
Mr. Mullenax extended an invitation to the Board to host a meeting at the fair park.  Chair 
Carnahan thanked him for the invitation. 
 
The Days of 47 Rodeo and the Utah State Fair Corp. successfully executed an operating 
agreement in April 2017.  The AGO worked closely with the Utah State Fair to draft a licensing 
agreement for use of the Days of 47 name.  The licensing agreement involves three entities, Days 
of 47 Inc., Days of 47 Rodeo, and Utah State Fair Corp.  The licensing agreement will be brought 
forward in a Days of 47 Inc. meeting next week for approval.  A final resolution for the licensing 
agreement should be in place by next Friday. 
 
Chair Carnahan requested that the State Fair Park notify the Board when both the operating and 
licensing agreements are in place.       

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF UTAH AND UTAH STATE 

UNIVERSITY 
Mr. Nye delivered the administrative report for the University of Utah.  There were 14 professional 
service agreements and 10 constructions contracts issued.  There are no significant items to 
report on as these are all small projects. 

 
Funds from two completed capital improvement projects totaling $36,654 were transferred into 
the Project Reserve Fund.  There are no decreases.  This leaves a current balance of $778,473, 
which has been determined to be an adequate amount in reserve for potential demands.  There 
is no activity to report on for the Contingency Reserve Fund, which has a current balance of 
$3,107,751.  An analysis indicates that this balance is adequate to complete projects that have 
been authorized and does not reflect an excess balance.   
 
Mr. Berrett delivered the administrative report for Utah State University.  4 Professional Contracts 
and 8 Construction Contracts were issued.  Highlights include; a contract issued to Cache 
Landmark to provide irrigation system design at the USU Botanical Center in Kaysville and a 
contract issued to Whitaker Consturction to improve the storm water detention system for the 
parking lot at Aggie Village.  The city has urged USU to address this problem.   
 
There were two draws to the Contingency totaling $36,131.  This leaves a balance of $647,728. 
There were two increases to the Project Reserve Fund totaling $33,375.  This leaves a balance 



Utah State Building Board Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2017 
Page 5 

 

of $384,032.  Mr. Berrett reports that both the Contingency and Project Reserve are in good order. 
 
Chair Carnahan inquired if the Board had any questions on the administrative reports for the 
University of Utah and Utah State University.  None were brought forward. 

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT FOR DFCM  

Mr. Russell presented the administrative report for DFCM. 13 professional service agreements 
were issued, which consists of 6 for design and 7 for other professional services.  16 construction 
contracts were issued consisting of 2 for new space, 12 for remodeling, 1 for paving, and 1 for 
other services. 
 
There was 1 increase and 8 transfers to projects from the Capital Development Contingency 
Reserve Fund resulting in an ending balance of $4,184,213.  There were multiple transfers to 
projects totaling $172,780 from the Capital Improvement Contingency Reserve Fund, which ended 
with a balance of $5,738,487. 
 
There is no activity to report for the Capital Development Project Reserve, which has an ending 
balance of $1,285,856.  The Capital Improvement Project Reserve had 11 transfers to the fund 
totaling $426,907, and 3 transfers from the fund of $75,711.  The ending balance is $5,351,834.  
Mr. Russell confirmed the contingencies are in order.      

 
 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

• Needs Statement requests will start going out on May 19.  This will be for FY 19 requests. 
 

This is the final meeting for Board Member Mr. Hunsaker and the Board’s legal counsel Mr. 
Bachman with the Attorney General’s Office.  The Board thanks both of them for their service and 
wishes them the best in their future endeavors.  Mr. Hunsaker and Mr. Bachman thanked the 
Board for the opportunity to serve. 

 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Mr. Nelson moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was second by Ms. 

Barrager and passed unanimously. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:50 AM. 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
 Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Charles Goodman, USDC Program Administrator  
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: DHS-USDC: Building Demolition Request 
 

 

 
Per 63A-5-104 (4 d iii), the Utah State Developmental Center is requesting to demolish three 
buildings that are beyond their useful life; two of which were built in 1935 (02071 & 02072), the 
third was built in 1970 (06640).  These buildings have not been used in over 30 years.   
 
The primary use of these buildings were for housing cattle and other animals for the 4-H Program.  
The 4-H Program is no longer housed at USDC.  These buildings are located on the west side of the 
USDC property, parallel to the walking trail owned by American Fork. 
 
This project will be managed in-house.  UCI (Utah Correctional Industries) has been selected as the 
contractor.  The estimated completion time for this project is approximately two weeks.  The total 
cost is $57,000, which will be paid from agency funds. 
 
• Cost to demo Building #1 (02071) & Building #2 (02072) = $30,000 
• Cost to demo Building #3 (06640) = $18,000 
• Install a new perimeter fence after demolition = $9,000 
 
Attached are quotes from UCI and pictures of the three buildings.





























 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Debbie Whitlock, Deputy Director, DJJS 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: DHS-DJJS: Request for Programming of the Wasatch Youth Center  

 
 

 
In August 2016, the Building Board toured the Wasatch Youth Center and the Training Academy, 
saw the existing facility deficits, and were made aware of the life safety issues.  JRCA Architects 
performed an in-depth feasibility analysis and determined that remodeling of these facilities is 
neither cost effective, nor recommended.  Instead, DJJS would like to construct, on the current site, 
a new multi-use youth center, which would consolidate a number of programs in the Salt Lake 
County area and include rehabilitation of youth offenders. 
 
Today, DJJS requests that the Board approve programming for a state of the art facility designed to 
deliver early intervention services for delinquent youths, comprehensive services for in-custody 
offenders, and secure housing for the state’s most serious youth offenders.  In addition, the facility 
would serve as the Division’s Training Center.  DJJS also seeks authorization to use $376,871, 
previously transferred to DFCM for the roofing project at the JJS Training Center, to fund this 
programming request.   



 
 

 

       WASATCH YOUTH CENTER REQUEST FOR PROGRAMMING 
       Debbie Whitlock, Deputy Director, JJS 
 
       OVERVIEW 

 
The Division of Juvenile Justice Services (JJS) provides a continuum of intervention, supervision and 
rehabilitation programs to youth offenders at facilities throughout the state. In Salt Lake County services 
include:  two secure care facilities (Wasatch and Decker Lake Youth Centers), case management, early 
intervention programs, home detention supervision services, short-term treatment, re-entry services and a 
Training Academy.  
 
In August 2016, the Building Board toured Wasatch Youth Center and the Training Academy, saw the existing 
facility deficits, and were made aware of the life safety issues.  JRCA Architects performed an in-depth 
feasibility analysis and determined that remodeling of these facilities is neither cost effective, nor 
recommended.  Instead, we would like to construct, on the current site, a new multi-use youth center, which 
would consolidate the above-mentioned programs for the care and rehabilitation of youth offenders.  Today, 
we would like to move forward with this plan and ask for Board approval to complete full programming for a 
state of the art facility designed to deliver early intervention services for delinquent youths, comprehensive 
services for in-custody offenders, and secure housing for the state’s most serious youth offenders.  In 
addition, the facility would serve as the Division’s Training Center.  
 

FEASABILITY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 Wasatch Youth Center is 54 years old, will not perform well during an earthquake, and poses 
significant life safety issues to its youth residents and to the staff.  

 Comprehensive retrofit of the facilities to address seismic hazards and critical needs has been 
deemed impractical. 

 Wasatch and Decker Lake Youth Centers were not built with adequate space to deliver educational 
and vocational programming, limiting rehabilitation opportunities. 

 Operating Salt Lake County juvenile justice programs in six separate facilities is costly and inefficient.  
 We have possible funding contributions from the sale of Weber Valley Detention and Decker Lake 

Youth Center.    

 
REQUEST 
 

 The Division is committed to changing young lives, supporting families and keeping communities 
safe.  We know that facility design and environment matter and are necessary components for the 
best chance of success for our youths. Given these factors, we are asking the committee to 
authorize JJS to use the $376,871.previously transferred to DFCM for the roofing project at the JJS 
Training Center to be used for programming of the proposed facility. 

 
 

   



 
 

 

Current Wasatch Youth Center 

                                                       
 

 
Proposed Multi-Use Facility – constructed on same site 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Cecil Robinson, Administrative Services Director 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: DHS-DJJS: Capital Improvement Transfer Request 

 
 

 
In FY 2016, the State Building Board approved $175,240 to upgrade the fire alarm system at 
Wasatch Youth Center.  Shortly after this approval, DJJS received two separate reports regarding 
the structural integrity of this facility. 
 
DJJS is requesting that the Building Board approve transferring $61,931 of these funds to a newly 
identified life safety issue at Salt Lake Valley Detention Center.  The facility’s fire alarm system 
and duress system are combined into one system.  The inability to differentiate between a fire, 
which would require the evacuation of the building, and a duress, which requires an immediate 
staff response, puts lives at risk. 



 

   CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TRANSFER REQUEST 
Cecil Robinson, Administrative Services Director 

 
 CURRENT APPROVED PROJECT 

 
In FY 2016, the State Building Board approved $175,240 to upgrade the fire alarm system 
at Wasatch Youth Center, a long-term secure facility for youth offenders. Shortly after this 
approval, the Division of Juvenile Justice Services received two separate reports regarding 
the structural integrity of Wasatch Youth Center. As a result of these reports and a 
subsequent feasibility study, the Division decided to request state funds to replace the 
facility and construct a new multi-use facility. The fire alarm upgrade, project #16006430, 
was placed on hold.  
 
The current system has since been re-evaluated and determined by engineers to have a 
five-year lifespan. Because the Division is seeking a replacement facility for Wasatch Youth 
Center, continued infrastructure investment is not warranted. 

 

      PROPOSED REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

The Division is requesting the Building Board approve transferring a portion of these funds 
to a newly identified life safety issue at Salt Lake Valley Detention Center, a facility for 
arrested youth offenders. The facility opened in 1997, and was operated by a private 
contractor until late 2015, when the Division took over operations.  
 
We recently discovered that the facility’s fire alarm system and duress system are 
combined into one system. Facility staff use duress buttons in the event of an emergency 
that requires an immediate response. The inability to differentiate between a fire, which 
would require the evacuation of the building, and a duress, which requires an immediate 
staff response, puts lives at risk. The Utah State Fire Marshall indicated that the duress 
system should be removed from the fire alarm system in order to bring the building into 
mandated compliance with the national and state fire and building codes.  
 
The cost to correct this problem is $61,931.  
        

               
$175,240

Wasatch Fire 
Alarm Upgrade

$61,931
Salt Lake Valley 
Detention Fire 

Safety

$113,309
remains with 

DFCM for 
other projects



May 1, 2017

Randy Mellor, Project Manager  
4110 State Office Building
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114

Re: Salt Lake Valley Detention Center Roofing,  
Fire Alarm and Duress Systems

Randy,

At the request of DFCM and the Department of Juvenile Justice we have reviewed the existing Fire Alarm
System and the staff duress notification systems at the Salt Lake Valley Detention Center.

The existing Fire Alarm System is a Edwards Signal Technologies system. It was installed in 1995 as part
of the original construction. The Duress System  was also installed in 1995. The Duress System consists of
a wall mounted button located in each classroom and one to two wall mounted buttons in each living area.

The Duress Alarm System is part of the Fire Alarm System. If a Duress System button is pushed the fire
alarm sounds and displays on the Fire Alarm Annunciator Panel in the Control Room. There is no
differentiation between the fire trouble/supervisory alarm and the duress alarm.  The location of the duress
signal is identified in the Control Room. 

In order to confirm if the Duress System could be part of the Fire Alarm system we contacted the Utah State
Fire Marshall.  We spoke with Deanne Mousley, Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems & Fire Alarm Systems
Fire Protection Engineer. The Utah State Fire Marshall’s office indicated that the existing Salt Lake Valley
Detention Center Fire Alarm and Duress systems did not comply with Building and Fire Codes. The Fire
Alarm System is a stand alone system. The Fire and Building Codes require that the Fire Alarm System
cannot be combined with any other system.

The Duress System should be removed from the Fire Alarm System in order to bring the building into the
mandated compliance with the National and State Fire and Building Codes. The Duress and Fire Alarm
Systems should be modified to create two separate stand alone systems. The alarms for the to systems should
be distinct in order to avoid confusion. If possible the Duress System should be modified to identify a more
exact location of the incident. It should also provide staff with readily available accessible access to the
system in case of emergency.

Please let us know if additional information is needed.   

Sincerely,

Frank N. Murdock, Jr.
Principal



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
 Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Lucas Davis, DFCM Project Manger 
 Jeff Reddoor, State Building Board Director 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: DFCM: USDC Capital Improvement Reallocation Request 

 
 

 

 
This request is to cancel the FY18 Capital Improvement Project “Human Services - USDC 
Auditorium AHU Replacement” in the amount of $107,500.00 and moved to an existing DFCM 
project #15223410 “USDC Quailrun Mechanical Upgrade”.  USDC has noted this project need was 
alleviated by emergency repairs and replacement of the coils in the existing auditorium air handlers 
in 2016.



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
 Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, University of Utah 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: University of Utah: Request for Approval of Energy Efficiency Improvements 

 

 
Per 63A-5-104(3)(d), the University of Utah requests approval to construct energy efficiency 
improvements that will reduce energy costs and emissions for at least 18 campus buildings, 
comprising almost 4 million square feet.  A summary of potential energy improvements is attached 
with those shaded in green and yellow being the most likely ones to be pursued. An investment grade 
audit is now being finalized which will guide final decisions on which specific improvements are 
cost effective. 
 
The total estimated cost of this project is $30 million. No state appropriated funding will be requested 
for the project. As the project will involve facilities that are classified both as state funding eligible 
and as auxiliaries, O&M and capital improvements will continue to be funded from the streams for 
which they are eligible.







U of U Campus Energy Efficiency Project Recommended ECM Matrix

EC
M

 C
at

eg
or

y 
/ 

N
am

e

EC
M

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

58
1 

- 
Sk

ag
gs

 R
es

ea
rc

h

58
2 

- 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y

58
8 

- 
N

ur
si

ng
58

9 
- 

Ec
cl

es
 H

ea
lth

 S
ci

en
ce

s 
Li

br
ar

y

57
5 

- 
H

ea
lt

h 
Sc

ie
nc

es

53
3 

- 
G

en
et

ic
s

53
0 

- 
W

in
tr

ob
e

57
0 

- 
Po

ly
m

er
s

56
5 

- 
M

ed
ic

al
 S

ci
en

ce
s

58
5 

- 
Ra

di
o 

Bi
ol

og
y 

La
b

58
6 

- 
Ra

di
o 

Bi
ol

og
y 

La
b

58
7 

- 
Co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
M

ed
ic

in
e 

Ce
nt

er

51
2 

- 
Re

se
ar

ch
 A

dm
in

55
5 

- 
H

un
ts

m
an

 C
an

er
 I

ns
tit

ut
e

55
0 

- 
Cl

in
ic

al
 N

eu
ro

sc
ie

nc
es

52
3 

- 
M

or
an

 E
ye

 C
en

te
r

52
2 

- 
W

es
t P

av
ili

on

52
5 

- 
Pa

ti
en

t C
ar

e

52
9 

- 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ce
nt

er

52
6 

- 
H

os
pi

ta
l G

en
er

at
in

g 
Pl

an
t

55
6 

- 
H

un
ts

m
an

 C
an

ce
r 

H
os

pi
ta

l

Evaporative Cooling Measures

Supply Air Direct Evap Cooling
Add or increase evap cooling capability on supply air to buildings. 
Recommission existing systems to work better with other stages of 
cooling and improve maintenance.

X X X X

Indirect Evap Cooling
Improve effectiveness of cooling tower cooling at 570 by adding 
dedicated pre-cool coils, install a new, open-cell cooling tower in 
565 to improve effectiveness

X X

Evap Pre-Cooling of Exhaust 
Air

Re-enable evap cooling to drive exhaust air temperatures lower 
before the exhaust heat recovery coil to increase effectiveness of 
heat recovery extend the hours heat recovery can run

X

Fume Hood Improvement Measures

Install New Variable Volume 
(VAV) Lab Controls

Install new venturi type supply air, exhaust and fume hood variable 
air volume controls with occupancy control. Balance labs to 
appropriate pressure differential and air change rate. 

X X

Add Occupancy Control 
Recommission Existing VAV 
Lab Controls 

Recommission lab controls to ensure appropriate pressure 
differential and air change rate. Add occupancy sensors to reduce 
air-change rate and shut off lights when labs are unoccupied. 

X X

Chilled Water Plant Capacity and Operability Measures

Increase Chilled Water Supply 
Temperature

Allow the plant to meet the loads of the buildings with a higher 
chilled water supply temperature (CHWST) by cleaning dirty coils, 
replacing coils that were selected at too low of a CHWST and 
bypassing building-level heat exchangers. CC=clean coils, NC=new 
coils, HX=bypass HX

HX HX CC CC
NC

HX
CC
NC

CC HX CC CC CC HX HX
CC

Decouple Operating Rooms 
From Plant

Install water source heat pumps on AHUs that serve operating 
rooms to allow those spaces to meet loads without altering the 
operation of the entire plant. 

X X X

New Control Valves
Install new, smart control valves which will allow for precision 
control of chilled water coils and provide feedback on the energy 
coils are using. 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X

ACC Boiler Project

Hospital Boiler Project New high efficiency condensing boiler plant & steam boilers. 
Optimization of existing facility equipment connected to plant.

X X X

Lighting Measures
LED Lighting Retrofit and 
Controls

Retrofit/Replace existing fluorescent lighting with LED retrofit 
solutions. 

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Active Energy Management

Active Energy Management

The concerted deployment of monitoring-based technologies and on-
site building-system experts to drive continuous improvements 
during the development, design, construction, and operations of 
campus facilities.

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Notes:
Recommended Measures in IGA X Measures Pending Further Investigation During Design X

Hospital / In-Patient CareResearch & Academic Shared



Facility Design/Build Cost* Annual Utility Savings**
Peak Cooling Reduction 
and Capacity Recovery 

(Ton)***

302 CHW Plant $40,000 $60,000 170

512 Research Admin $20,000 $3,000 10

521 School of Medicine $0 $1,120,000 0

522 West Pavilion $620,000 $380,000 80

523 Moran Eye Center $200,000 $50,000 0

525 Patient Care $1,340,000 $580,000 320

526 Generating Plant $190,000 $10,000 20

529 Emergency Center $460,000 $290,000 50

530 Wintrobe $110,000 $20,000 20

531 Medical Research ED Bldg $0 $120,000 0

533 Genetics $5,450,000 $210,000 430

535 Dumke $0 $50,000 0

550 Clinical Neuroscience $420,000 $30,000 60

555 Huntsman I $180,000 $60,000 0

556 Huntsman II $1,110,000 $140,000 140

565 Medical Science $1,530,000 $120,000 530

570 Polymer Lab $4,940,000 $160,000 230

575 Health Sciences $300,000 $40,000 40

581 Skaggs Research Bldg $530,000 $50,000 240

582 SKH Pharmacy $50,000 $20,000 20

585 Radiobiology Lab $20,000 $3,500 0

586 Radiobiology Lab $0 $500 0

587 Comparative Medicine $40,000 $10,000 0

588 Nursing CNB $340,000 $20,000 30

589 EHL Library $70,000 $10,000 10

701 APT $20,000 $10,000 20

702 APT $20,000 $10,000 20

New Hospital Heat Plant $9,000,000 -$460,000 0

University Soft Costs & Contingency**** $3,000,000 

Total $30,000,000 $3,117,000 2,440

** These savings represent energy savings only, operational savings will be investigated during the design phase.

**** Not to be included in McKinstry's contract.

University of Utah IGA

Potential Energy Conservation Measures

Publication Date: 5/23/2017

*** Peak cooling savings and capacity recovery from plant 302 is distributed among the buildings.

* Design/build costs are preliminary estimates and are distributed among the ECMs. The guaranteed maximum cost will be obtained during the design 
phase and will include all applied rebates.



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
 Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, University of Utah 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: University of Utah: Request for Approval of the Jon M. Huntsman Center 

Scoreboard Replacement 
 

 
Per 63A-5-104(3)(d), the University of Utah  requests approval to construct a replacement and 
upgrade of the Scoreboard System in the Jon M. Huntsman Center. The current scoreboard system 
has served the University well for about ten years but has begun to fail and needs replacement.  This 
project will replace the existing scoreboards in the center of the arena as well as install additional 
auxiliary boards around the periphery of the arena.  This upgrade will greatly enhance spectator 
viewing while also leveraging revenue stream opportunities with sponsors. 

 
The total estimated cost of this project is $4.1 million. No state funds will be used for this project. A 
letter from President Pershing is attached which certifies the availability of the project funds . As the 
Jon M. Huntsman Center is operated as an auxiliary, O&M and capital improvements will continue 
to be funded from non-state funds







Proposed View-
Scoreboard
Huntsman Arena

Proposed Size-
403 Sq. Ft 

-Baseline Boards 
are replacement
-Tunnel Board is 
New 
-Enhanced LED 
capability



Proposed View-
Auxiliary Side Boards & 
Scoreboard
Huntsman Arena

4 Total Auxiliary Boards in each 
corner of the new ceiling grid





Budget:
Construction Cost (including new boards) $3,350,000
Soft Costs $   750,000

Total Project Cost $4,100,000

Schedule:
• Design/Build Contractor Selected June 2017
• Completion November 2017



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
 Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Mike Smith, State Building Board Facilities Auditor 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: State Building Board: Facility Condition Assessment Program and 

Preventative Maintenance Audit Annual Report 
 

 
Mike Smith will present and answer questions on the Facility Condition Assessment Program and 
the Preventative Maintenance Audit Annual Report for FY17.



Facility Condition Assessment Program and 
Preventative Maintenance Audit Annual Report 

 

Utah State Building Board / June 2017 



 

  
 

      State of Utah 
 

           Utah State Building Board 
            4110 State Office Building Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-1002 
            Phone: 801-538-3018  Fax: 801-538-3378 

 
 

Facility Condition Assessment (FCA) Program Summary 
 
 

Facility Condition Assessment Program (FCA) -  

Facility condition assessment (FCA) is an industry term that describes the process of a qualified group of trained industry 
professionals performing an analysis of the condition of a group of facilities that may vary in terms of age, design, construction 
methods, and materials. This analysis can be performed on government/public, commercial, and private facilities.  This analysis can be 
done by walk-through inspection, mathematical modeling (see Mathematical Model), or a combination of both. But the most accurate 
way of determining the condition requires walk-through to collect baseline data.  This is the method DFCM and the State of Utah is 
currently using.  Since 2010 DFCM has contracted with Faithful + Gould to perform these assessments. 

Once the walk-through data has been collected, appropriate estimates to correct the deficiencies are prepared.  Once the estimates are 
prepared, the client is left with potentially 1,000’s of line items that need to be sorted, grouped together, and presented in a useful 
format.  Faithful + Gould uses third party software to host all of this information, and to allow access to the varying agencies 
throughout the state. 

 
 
Current FCA Statistics 
• To date 865 buildings and 11 parking structures have received FCA assessments since 2011. 
• For FY17 the existing FCA contract was modified to include the assessment and GIS mapping of the state’s infrastructure systems. 
• Infrastructure work is expected to be completed in FY18. 
• Finished data will be hosted by the Utah AGRC to provide necessary security and access to agencies. 

 
 
FCA Program key findings 
• 3,706 Deferred Maintenance items totaling $82,701,434 have been identified through year 2027. 
• 16,225 Capital Renewal items totaling $576,203,269 have been identified through year 2027. 

 
 
 
 

 

Agency # Buildings Assessed GSF # Identified Deficiencies Total Deficiency Cost

All Agencies Combined 865 33,982,721                           19,114                                   640,720,912.03$                 

Agency # Buildings Assessed GSF # Identified Deficiencies Total Deficiency Cost
State Agencies 359 11,331,088                           7,848                                     238,429,490.88$                 

Agency # Buildings Assessed GSF # Identified Deficiencies Total Deficiency Cost
Higher Education* 506 22,651,633                           11,266                                   402,291,421.15$                 

Higher Education Summary

Statewide Summary

Agencies Summary

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Breakdown by Agency

Agency Sub-Agency (Campus) # Assessments Completed GSF # Identified Deficiencies Total Deficiency Cost

Corrections 36 692,422                                 497                                        15,091,507.15$               
CUCF Gunnison* 29 536,170                                 373                                        12,704,809.85$                
AP&P Buildings 7 156,252                                 124                                        2,386,697.30$                  

DFCM 157 7,032,374                             3,523                                     147,421,804.79$             

Department of Human Services 59 1,316,173                             1,801                                     40,654,127.35$               
Developmental Center* 19 355,516                                 463                                        11,588,501.72$                

DHS Other 4 18,991                                   50                                           252,641.88$                     
DHS State Hospital* 14 330,227                                 385                                        11,813,726.17$                

DHS Youth Corrections 22 611,439                                 903                                        16,999,257.58$                

Department of Natural Resources 55 969,900                                 1,100                                     10,001,518.52$               
Parks 38 702,295                                 798                                        6,900,164.41$                  

Wildlife 17 267,605                                 302                                        3,101,354.11$                  

Fairpark* 29 373,312                                 390                                        7,790,694.37$                 

National Guard 3 542,761                                 107                                        5,316,548.70$                 

Schools for the Deaf and Blind 2 154,638                                 77                                           2,042,217.03$                 

UDOT 17 231,908                                 335                                        9,987,446.27$                 

UGS 1 17,600                                   18                                           123,626.70$                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Breakdown by Agency (Campus)

Agency Sub-Agency (Campus) # Buildings Assessed GSF # Identified Deficiencies Total Deficiency Cost

Dixie State University* 31 933,917                                 713                                        20,831,219.23$               

Salt Lake Community College* 32 1,899,587                             700                                        22,268,652.90$               
Redwood 16 777,274                                 311 12,711,279.36$                

Jordan 4 266,144                                 110 2,043,071.96$                  
Miller 8 329,892                                 121 3,393,579.84$                  

Meadowbrook 3 70,406                                   105 1,883,023.50$                  
South City 1 455,871                                 53 2,237,698.24$                  

Snow College* 21 918,446                                 572                                        19,417,100.01$               
Ephraim 18 644,295                                 403 12,720,208.79$                
Richfield 3 274,151                                 169 6,696,891.22$                  

Southern Utah University* 40 1,207,330                             1,044                                     37,734,211.38$               

UCAT 28 1,393,913                             748                                        24,761,516.71$               
Bridgerland ATC 2 296,454                                 186                                        6,572,075.03$                  

Davis ATC 4 446,000                                 89                                           6,486,327.63$                  
Dixie ATC 1 23,000                                   -                                         -$                                   

Mountainland ATC 2 124,631                                 34                                           676,461.32$                     
Ogden Weber ATC* 16 359,831                                 297                                        6,563,486.68$                  

Southwest ATC 1 36,937                                   53                                           1,760,126.31$                  
Uinta Basin ATC 2 107,060                                 89                                           2,703,039.74$                  

University of Utah 125 6,362,189                             3,289                                     143,281,819.72$             

Utah State University* 131 4,517,759                             2,510                                     70,382,456.17$               
USU Eastern 13 391,076                                 271                                        9,268,631.82$                  

USU Blanding 5 72,780                                   55                                           1,172,648.26$                  
USU Logan 113 4,053,903                              2,184                                     59,941,176.09$                

Utah Valley University* 28 1,923,011                             712                                        23,900,962.09$               

Weber State University* 70 3,495,481                             978                                        39,713,482.94$                



 
State of Utah 

Utah State Building Board 
4110 State Office Building Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone: 801-538-3018 Fax: 801-538-3378 

 
 
 

Preventative Maintenance Audit Program Summary 
 

AGENCIES CONTACTED 
• A comprehensive contact list has been created to track agency contacts and to allow for proper notification of audit and 

assessment activities. 
• Delegation letters have been distributed to agencies and are coming back for DFCM Director Approval. 

 
APPROXIMATELY 54.4 MILLION SQUARE FEET OF STATE OWNED BUILDINGS TO BE AUDITED. 
• 31.3 million square feet belonging to Higher Education. 
• 23.1 million square feet belonging to various State Agencies. 

 
PM AUDIT WORK COMPLETED 
• 74.3 million square feet of building space has been audited since January 2012, including follow-up visits. 
• Auditors average 95 facilities visited each month. 
• 19.8 million square feet of building space was visited in FY17. 
• Continuously review and edit the prescribed preventive maintenance standards to keep them up to date. Current standards were 

updated and approved by the Building Board in 2015. 
 
 
 

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AUDIT 
PROCESS 

 
1. Establish agency contacts concerning facility maintenance and condition on various levels. 
2. Prepare schedule for audits. ( send announcement, prepare itinerary ) 
3. Meet at facility with agency representatives to review needs, concerns, and on site walk through. 
4. Take photographs of various equipment and conditions in building 
5. Review audit questionnaire report with agency representatives and score audit. 
6. Evaluate existing conditions of facility and prepare written recommendations to aid in the compliance process. 
7. Generate audit reports and distribute reports as necessary. 
8. All information gathered from audit process is used to build electronic databases and report to Building Board. 
9. Maintain customer follow-up support and follow-up audits. 

 
 
 

Non-Agency Specific: 
 

• PM Audit program has been very active for 5 years now. 
• All agencies are aware that these audits are being conducted regularly, and have been being performed for multiple years. 
• Agencies are given 1 year to correct any identified deficiencies. 
• Any item identified but not corrected, automatically receives a lower score during following audits. 
• Current statewide average score for all agencies is 92.54 

  



 

 

 

 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Monthly Totals 40 147 60 100 152 80 86 53 93 120 112 0

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Vi

si
te

d 

FY17 PM Audits Conducted 

Audited/Scheduled % of Buildings Total Square Feet % Sq.Ft. Agency Avg.

61 36% 2,115,514 29% 94.07

37 23% 652,028 33% 88.42

46 100% 371,826 100% 77.70

343 75% 13,967,411 64% 91.09

80 55% 1,092,051 68% 93.54

3 20% 316,918 19% 91.80

345 46% 751,102 56% 92.21

10 91% 113,274 73% 89.80

118 81% 513,986 29% 89.60

0 0% 0 0% 0.00

1043 53% 19,894,110 57% 89.80

Administrative Services
Corrections

FY17 Audit Results by Agency

USDB
Natural Resources

Higher Education
Fairpark

Human Services
National Guard

UDOT
Veterans Affairs
Statewide Totals

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY17 % of Buildings FY17 Average Total Buildings Total Square Feet Agency Average
37 97 79 61 36% 94.07 274 12,623,554 94.20

7 14 51 37 23% 88.42 109 3,577,047 89.08

45 45 45 46 100% 77.70 181 1,487,304 76.62

109 498 357 343 75% 91.09 1307 45,308,664 91.57

12 134 117 80 55% 93.54 343 3,709,187 92.31

4 8 8 3 20% 91.80 23 2,196,268 91.91

218 176 294 345 46% 92.21 1033 2,466,993 92.27

11 11 11 10 91% 89.80 43 580,596 89.80

20 52 108 118 81% 89.60 298 2,153,547 88.78

1 2 4 0 N/A N/A 7 281,000 93.99

464 1,037 1,074 1,043 59% 89.80 3,618 74,384,160 90.05Statewide Totals

Higher Education
Human Services
National Guard

Natural Resources
Schools for the Deaf and Blind

Veterans Affairs

Administrative Services
Corrections

Fairpark

UDOT

Total Audit Results by Agency



 

Administrative Services: 

 
 

• DAS has several regional groups which are responsible for the care of roughly 185 buildings. 
• Will be assuming maintenance responsibility for the Utah State Developmental Center in July, 2017. 
• 12,623,554 square feet of building space has been audited since 2012. 
• Four year average score is 94.2% 

 
 This agency is performing well overall. DFCM has mandated a functional CMMS (AiM) be used at all of 
their properties which greatly assist them in meeting the required Preventive Maintenance Standards. Operating 
from six separate groups throughout the state, the agency provides maintenance services for a wide variety of 
state agencies. 

 
 
 
Department of Corrections: 

 
 

• The UDC operates several separate facilities that include two prisons and a number of smaller 
transitional buildings. 

• An estimated 159 facilities currently being maintained by UDC total roughly 2,007,067 square feet. 
• Average score for the agency over a four year period is 89.08% 
• Agency does well at meeting the prescribed standards at the two major campuses (CUCF and Draper), 

but struggles to meet the administrative and physical requirements at smaller facilities. 
 
 The Utah Department of Corrections has implemented appropriate preventive maintenance standards at 
both the CUCF Gunnison and Draper Prison sites. Remote sites and smaller AP&P offices do not have a 
functioning CMMS in place. Administrative requirements mandate a data-based log book or CMMS be in place 
for all facilities regardless of size. 
 
 UDC has been planning to implement a standard system for these smaller facilities but has yet to meet that 
requirement.  Due to the lack of a CMMS and often lack of manpower there are numerous deficiencies that have 
yet to be addressed by the managing agency. 

 

 

 

93.0

94.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
Fairpark: 

 
 

• Agency has never received a score at or above the required 90% compliance level. 
• Agency is responsible for 45 buildings at the Utah State Fairpark totaling roughly 372,000 sq.ft. 
• Four year average score for the Fairpark is 76.62% 

 
 The Utah State Fairpark has opted to contract the majority of the building mechanical maintenance out to a 
vendor.  This maintenance is based off of the contractor’s recommendations and is laid out in either a quarterly or 
annual type of schedule.  It is noted that the facility management at the Fairpark has changed again since the last 
inspection, this marks the third change in leadership in four years. 
 
 Frequent managerial changes and a lack of formal CMMS continue to negatively impact the score for this 
agency.  Building walk through often reveals a need for large scale renovation and improvement funding at many 
of the facilities on site.  Maintenance staff is often used for event setup and special projects which limit their 
ability to address necessary facility repairs or maintenance. 
 
 
Department of Human Services: 

 
 

• Agency is responsible for roughly 1.6 million sq.ft., at 138 separate buildings. 
• DHS can generally be divided into three separate and distinct areas; The Utah State Developmental 

Center, The Utah State Hospital and the JJS / YC facilities throughout the state. 
• Four year average score is 92.31% 

 
 The Department of Human Services has made meeting the prescribed maintenance standards a high 
priority at the majority of their facilities.  They have developed and mandated the use of a functional CMMS 
called FITS at all of their facilities and large campuses.  The FITS program is currently being upgraded to better 
meet the requirements in the Standards and be more functional in all aspects of maintaining the buildings they are 
over.  In addition to the use of their CMMS, they also have very detailed and comprehensive log books at each 
Juvenile Justice and Youth Corrections facility to ensure that all required documentation is onsite and up to date. 

 
 DFCM will begin managing the facility planning and maintenance at the Utah State Developmental Center 
in July 2017.  

65.0

70.0

75.0

80.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

85.0

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



National Guard: 

 
 

• Agency is responsible for the maintenance of roughly 24 separate buildings totaling 810,000 square feet. 
• Four year average score is 91.91% 
• The agency is required to maintain a balance between the mandated PM Standards as well as 

the standards set in place on the federal level. 
 
 The Utah National Guard continues to improve their maintenance program.  All buildings outside of 
Camp Williams are maintained under one program, while the Camp Williams facilities are entirely separate. 
National Guard maintenance staff has the difficulty of meeting both the Utah State Building Board PM 
Standards and any and all Federal requirements set in place. Preventive Maintenance Audits are ongoing and the 
agency appears to prioritize identified deficiencies between visits which has resulted in minor score increases 
and even at some locations seeing a drop in score over the four year period.  The West Jordan National Guard is 
currently under a renovation including the HVAC system.  The Draper facility has had a few small projects that 
they have been working on. 
 
 
Natural Resources: 

 

• Agency manages roughly 1.6 million sq.ft of building space, divided between 43 State Parks and 18 fish 

hatchery and wildlife buildings. 

• Four year average score is 92.27% 
• This agency is divided into two separate entities, both with their own unique challenges and missions. 

 
 This agency has developed and mandated the use of a functional CMMS to help them meet the 
requirements put in place.  Typical building systems at the parks are basic in design and therefore seldom 
require specialized staff to perform general maintenance.  Wildlife facilities have more specialized equipment in 
place due to their operational activities. Most of this equipment is maintained under contract.  The buildings 
systems that are residential or basic in design are typically maintained by the Hatchery supervisor or designated 
maintenance person. 

 
 Budgetary restraints in the last several years have hard felt and lasting impacts to personnel at each park 
location.  Often times it is the park manager that is forced to perform all managerial tasks as well as 
maintenance and law enforcement tasks throughout the entire park or parks. 

90.0
91.0
92.0
93.0
94.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

91.0

92.0

93.0

94.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



Schools for the Deaf and Blind: 

 
• Four year average score is 89.8% 
• FY17 average score is 89.8% 

 
 The Utah Schools for the Deaf and Blind have greatly improved their maintenance program over the past 
couple years.  Items like hiring additional maintenance staff, implementing a CMMS to track maintenance and 
streamlining administrative functions have had significant positive impacts on their ability to meet the required 
standards.  They have one maintenance person that has worked hard on inputting all equipment information and 
creating a PM schedule for each piece of equipment.  This has greatly helped improve their score in that area.  

 
The Libby Edwards location in Salt Lake City currently has a new building being built on site to add to the 
space that they have and will be maintaining.  

 
 While their buildings are not without room for improvement it has been noted that significant 
improvements have been made and are expected to continue. 
 
 
 

UDOT: 

 
• Four year average score is 88.78% 
• FY17 average score is 89.6% 
• This agency manages roughly 523 buildings, the majority of which are basic maintenance stations and 

equipment storage facilities. 
 
 UDOT is divided into four separate regions in the state. Each region typically operates on its own with 
little collaboration with the remaining regions.  This divide has essentially created four individual sub-agencies 
within the UDOT organization.  Maintenance tasks, tracking and documentation are all handled very differently 
from one region to the next.  This separation causes the PM scores to vary greatly from region to region. 

 
 While notable improvements are being made in regards to routine maintenance, the agency is operating 
from a large number of facilities that no longer meet the needs of the agency.  Maintenance stations were 
originally built to house plow and maintenance vehicles but as the vehicles and equipment have grown, many 
facilities have become unable to meet their intended purpose.  Many of these buildings are now decades old and 
require replacement.

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

84.0
86.0
88.0
90.0
92.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



Veterans Affairs: 

 
 

• Four year average score is 93.99% 
• Facilities have not yet been audited in FY17. 
• Maintenance of these facilities moved to DFCM late in FY16 for a portion of the required 

maintenance. 
 
 There have been two new Veterans Nursing homes built or completed in the last few of years one in 
Payson, Utah and the other in Ivins, Utah. Both of which had their first PM audits completed last year and will 
have a follow up audit completed in June of 2017.  These facilities receive frequent federal inspections and are 
therefore typically very well cared for and maintained.  Audits revealed some minor deficiencies that have been 
worked on and improved.  This past year the Veterans Affairs contacted DFCM and has started to implement a 
working relationship at the Ogden, Payson, and Ivins facilities to have DFCM take care of most of the HVAC, 
plumbing, fire systems, and electrical work.  Veterans Affairs has contracted the operations and the basic 
maintenance of these three facilities to Avalon.  The facility in Salt Lake City on Foothill Drive is all managed 
and maintained through Avalon.  It was observed that some of the deficiencies could be attributed to conflicting 
standards between the federal and state requirements.  Auditors will continue to work with this agency to ensure 
that the Utah State Building Board standards are being met.

90.0

92.0

94.0

96.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
USHE Executive Summaries by Campus 

 

Non-Specific Notes: 
 

• Agency is responsible for the maintenance of roughly 60% of the State of Utah’s building inventory. 
• Site visits and audit reports are divided into manageable numbers which result in each agency 

receiving multiple visits throughout the year in order to visit all of the required facilities. 
• Reports are generated and delivered to the agency following each visit.  These reports outline specific 

items identified during each visit so the managing agency can better address and correct the issue. 
• 343 buildings totaling 13.9 million square feet of building space were visited and have had a full 

physical walkthrough conducted thus far in FY17. 

 

 
 
 
 
Dixie State University: 

 
• 7 buildings were audited totaling 173,048 square feet. 
• FY17 average score was 94.6% 
• Four year average score is 93.68% 

 
 This agency has standardized frequent walkthrough’s and functionality checks for all of their buildings 
and associated mechanical areas.  These frequent visits appear to greatly reduce the length of time between a 
problem occurring and corrective action being taken.  Once an issue has been corrected the effected 
equipment and rooms are properly cleaned prior to closing the work order.  This high level of responsibility 
and thorough maintenance should be recognized and commended. 

 
 PM on campus is typically performed by a five person crew, working closely with the tradesmen on 
staff.  Managing these facilities with a small number of staff allows them to better monitor the quality of 
work.  Identified deficiencies are typically very minor but require correction nonetheless. 

Audited FY14 FY14 Score Audited FY15 FY15 Score Audited FY16 FY16 Score Audited FY17 FY17 Score 4yr. Total Buildings 4yr. Agency Average
10 93.1 31 93.50 16 93.50 7 94.60 64 93.68

22 92.0 37 91.50 55 92.80 48 92.10 162 92.10

10 92.8 17 91.80 21 94.20 15 93.70 63 93.13

5 94.9 34 93.85 34 93.03 34 93.10 107 93.72

21 90.0 40 91.21 43 92.71 35 92.59 139 91.64

8 90.9 115 87.08 52 89.90 61 88.72 236 89.14

19 90.2 158 90.80 92 93.46 95 94.32 364 92.20

9 92.0 26 91.00 27 91.40 26 91.90 88 91.58

5 93.8 40 92.77 17 91.85 22 91.80 84 92.56

109 92.19 498 91.50 357 92.54 343 92.54 1,307 92.19

USHE Audit Results by Campus

Southern Utah University
UCAT

Dixie State University
Salt Lake Community College

Snow College

University of Utah
Utah State University
Utah Valley University
Weber State University

Statewide Totals

90.0

92.0

94.0

96.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 

SLCC: 

 
• Agency maintains roughly 76 buildings totaling 2,125,639 square feet. 
• The buildings maintained by SLCC are divided amongst several separate campuses in the Salt 

Lake Valley. 
• FY17 average score for all campuses is 92.1% 

 
 Salt Lake Community College has implemented the Sprocket CMMS to organize and track their 
maintenance activities.  Communication between the campuses has proven to be critical in keeping the 
standards consistent throughout the agency.  The overall scores for this agency have been improving since 
initial audits in 2012 but dropped a little from FY16 to FY17.  SLCC has been working hard on completing 
the metering projects at all campuses and have made great improvements in the capabilities to track all the 
utility costs. 

 
 While the agency is consistently improving, it is imperative that proper attention be given to the full 
scope of the PM standards in order to remain above the required 90%. Improvements in the areas of 
equipment maintenance, fire and life safety equipment testing and general mechanical space cleanliness 
should be made a priority. 
 

 
 
 

 
Snow College: 

 
 

• Responsible for the maintenance of 42 buildings totaling 1,245,845 square feet. 
• Buildings are divided between the Ephraim and Richfield campuses. 
• Average score for FY17 is 93.7% 

 
 Snow College has transitioned to using one CMMS for the entire campus rather than the two separate 
programs that used to be in place.  This program allows the maintenance staff to track and document the 
ongoing, as well as the day to day maintenance activities across the Ephraim and Richfield campuses. It has 
been found that the two separate campuses work closely with each other to ensure that all necessary repairs 
are made in a timely manner and that they are well documented as required. 

 
 The majority of deficiencies identified during the audit process are attributed to the building age, 

90.0

91.0

92.0

93.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



prioritization of capital improvement funding and some missing administrative documentation. Contact has 
been made with the agency to see that these items are corrected and reoccurrences are minimized in the future. 
 
 
SUU: 

 
 

• Responsible for the maintenance of 92 buildings totaling 1,587,217 square feet. 
• Average score for FY17 is 93.1% 
• Four year average score is 93.72%. 

 
 The maintenance staff at this campus has been utilizing the Sprocket CMMS to assist them in meeting 
the requirements of the Utah State Building Board.  However, they are in the process of implementing a new 
CMMS that will track corrective maintenance, preventive maintenance, equipment tagging, equipment cost, 
and labor.  It is noticed by my conversation and the walk through that the maintenance directors and staff at 
this facility are continuously striving to meet the Facilities Maintenance Standards and to be as efficient as 
possible.  The auditing process and reports are intended to be used as a tool for agencies to use to identify 
areas that could be improved and/or efficiency increased.  It has been noted that items identified during 
previous PM audits are typically corrected prior to the next visit which greatly increases the agencies overall 
score. 

 
 Identified deficiencies included findings related to minor administrative data, electrical equipment 
maintenance and some aesthetic repairs that were observed as being needed in some buildings. 
 
 
Utah Colleges of Applied Technology : 

 
• Responsible for the maintenance of 39 buildings totaling 312,950 square feet. 
• Average score for FY17 is 92.59% 
• UCAT operates several campuses across the state and each function independently of one another. 

 
 The Utah Colleges of Applied Technology is a fast growing segment of Higher Education. New 
campuses are being brought online with no centralized mandate or program in place.  It is highly 
recommended that this agency look at each campus as part of a larger program and institute a functional 
building maintenance plan.  Discussions have taken place with most of the new campuses to make them aware 
that the Utah State Building Board standards exist and that they need to be upheld.  A cooperative effort 
between all campuses should be encouraged to UCAT administration. 

 
 

90.0

95.0

100.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

90.0

92.0

94.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
 
University of Utah: 

 

• Audits in FY17 included visits to 61 buildings totaling 3,937,710 square feet. 
• FY17 average score was 88.72% 
• Four year average score is 89.14% 

 
 The University of Utah is one of the largest single agencies in the State of Utah. In all, the University of 
Utah operates roughly 14 million square feet of building space which equates to almost 27% of the State’s 
building inventory.  In addition to the building space there is a substantial infrastructure investment on 
campus. 

 
 The University’s overall score dropped below the required 90% compliance level in FY15. This was 
primarily due to a lack of corrective action on the part of the agency in response to previous audit reports. It is 
customary to lower the score for any previously identified item if it is found to not have been corrected during 
follow up audits.  This downward trend combined with the re-weighting of the score sheet brought the overall 
score down to its lowest level to date. 

 
 In FY16 some improvements across campus were starting to materialize.  Increased efforts in Life 
Safety, electrical equipment maintenance and general maintenance were noted as starting to have a positive 
impact on audit scores and on the condition of these facilities.   

 
 Starting in FY17, the maintenance department on campus had been divided into 7 districts.  Each 
district now has its own staff of maintenance personnel, coordinators and managers.  Hopefully this will allow 
the building operators to better tailor the maintenance program to fit the district’s specific needs.  While the 
long term impact is yet to be seen, audits in FY17have been showing some much needed improvements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85.0

87.0

89.0

91.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
Utah State University: 

 

• Audits in FY17 included visits to 95 buildings totaling 1,976,494 square feet. 
• FY17 average score was 94.32% 
• Four year average score is 92.2% 

 
 Utah State University has grown to be another one of the largest single agencies in the State of Utah. 
With the acquisitions of the College of Eastern Utah in both Price and Blanding, as well as its numerous 
Distance Education facilities, USU now operates roughly 415 buildings totaling 7,382,525 square feet of 
building space. 

 
 The Logan campus utilizes a CMMS to help monitor, track and schedule preventive maintenance tasks 
for all of the buildings in the area.  The USU Eastern and San Juan Campuses are now using their own 
systems outside of the one being used in Logan.  There has been effort made to implement the same CMMS 
for the distance education facilities throughout the state that is being used at the USU Eastern and San Juan 
Campuses.  It is imperative that USU continues to improve its current program and address all of the 
identified items in the audit reports in order to remain above the 90% level. 
 

 
Utah Valley University: 

 
• Audits in FY17 included visits to 26 buildings totaling 1,605,271 square feet. 
• FY17 average score was 91.9% 
• Four year average score is 91.58% 
• Full CMMS implementation needs to remain a priority to see continued improvement. 

 
 Utah Valley University is currently managing 106 buildings totaling 2.1 million square feet.  Many of 
those are either auxiliary or minor in nature and were not included in the FY16 auditing process.  The PM 
Coordinators looked at all of the major facilities on campus and produced written reports containing any 
significant findings.  The campus facilities were observed as being in generally good condition with the 
majority of necessary maintenance being done in a timely manner. 

 
 Utah Valley University continues to work on the process of implementing a new CMMS program to 
combine the current work order and PM programs into one program to better track corrective maintenance, 
preventive maintenance, equipment tagging, equipment cost, and labor.  They have run into a few snags as 
they have started to implement the new CMMS which has slowed the process down.  Most of the equipment 
on campus has been tagged with the exception of a few new pieces of equipment.  The maintenance staff will 
be able to transfer all equipment data and existing equipment numbers into the new program. 

85.0

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

90.0

92.0

94.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
 
Weber State University: 

 
 

• A total of 22 buildings were audited in FY17 totaling 850,358 square feet. 
• The FY17 average score for the agency is 91.8% currently. 
• Four year average score is at 92.56% 
• The campus’ maintenance program has undergone significant improvements over the last few 

years which are evident in the building condition and the audit reports. 
 
 Weber State University is currently using the AiM system to help them track, generate and document 
maintenance activities.  Since the initial audit in 2012 the campus has made significant improvements in their 
life safety program and continues to work on improving in other areas pertaining to the Maintenance 
Standards.  These improvements include the hiring of a Master Technician to perform alarm testing and a 
more comprehensive extinguisher routine.  While the improvements made are noted, the agency is still 
encouraged to continue progressing and addressing any identified items found in the audit reports.  

85.0

90.0

95.0

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17



 
 
 
 
 

Utah State Building Board 
 
 
 

Gary R. Herbert 
Governor 3120 State Office Building 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
Phone (801) 538-3010 
Fax (801) 538-3844 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Utah State Building Board 
From: Ken Nye, University of Utah 
 Ben Berrett, Utah State University 
Date: June 7, 2017 
Subject: Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University 
 

 

 
Attached for your review are the Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State 
University for June 2017. 
 
Attachments: 
Report for U of U 
Report for USU



 

Chief Design & Construction Officer 

1795 East South Campus Dr, Room 201F 
V. Randall Turpin University Services Building 

Salt Lake City, UT  84112-9404 
(801) 581-6510 

FAX (801) 581-6081 

 

 
May 26, 2017 

 

 

Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Director 

Utah State Building Board  

State Office Building Room 4110  

Salt Lake City, UT 84114 

 

Subject:  U of U Administrative Reports for the June 7, 2017 Building Board Meeting. 

 

Dear Jeff: 

 

The following is a summary of the administrative reports for the U of U for the period  

April 19, 2017 – May 23, 2017.  Please include this in the packet for the June 7, 2017 Building Board 

meeting. 

 

Professional Services Agreements (Page 1) 

The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 

8 Design Agreements, 6 Planning/ Study/Other Agreements. 

 

No significant items. 

 

Construction Contracts (Page 2) 

The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 

0 New Space Contracts, 7 Remodeling Contracts, 1 Site Improvement Contracts. 

 

 

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 3) 

 

Increases:   

Residual funds of $92,889 were transferred from the Social & Behavioral Science – Seismic Upgrade at 

Basement & Part of Classroom Levels which was funded with FY15 capital improvement funds. 

 

Decreases:  

None.  

 

Balance: 

The current balance of this fund is $871,362 which is deemed a reasonable reserve for potential demands 

of future projects bidding above budgeted amounts given the potential for escalating construction costs. 

 

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 4) 

 

Increases:   

None. 

 

   

 



 

   

Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Director  

May 26, 2017 

Page 2 

 

Decreases: 

Project 21582; Energy Projects Associated Work 

This transfer of $60,071 covers the cost of several unforeseen conditions and design omissions.  The most 

substantial involved reliance on as-built drawings from previous projects that proved to be inaccurate and 

the deficiencies were missed in the investigations during design.  This project is substantially complete 

and we do not expect substantial additional draws from contingency. 

 

Project 21642; HTW Distribution Completion 

This transfer of $330,099 covers the cost of 19 unforeseen conditions, two design omissions, and three 

scope adjustments to allow University operations to continue during the work.  The triple wall pipe that is 

being direct buried through this project has a very low tolerance for adjustments in the field with anything 

but a very small deviation requiring fabrication of replacement pipe at a substantial delay and cost.  In 

order to mitigate this constraint, two key strategies have been employed. First, in an effort to avoid other 

buried utilities, the design provided for placing new pipe above the existing pipe whenever possible. 

Second, the route of the pipe is excavated prior to the final order for fabricating pipe in order to address 

any routing changes before the pipe is fabricated.  The causes for these uses of contingency funds are 

summarized below: 

 

 A total of $290,976 of the transfers are due to unforeseen conditions. The most common were 

places where the existing pipe was too shallow to allow placement above it which necessitated 

additional trenching and piping changes to change the route. These sometimes required relocation 

of other utilities in order to create an alternative path for the new HTW pipe.  We had also 

attempted to save some mature trees but found that the impact of the excavation was too severe 

and the trees had to be removed and replaced. 

 Design omissions totaled $12,673 and involved a failure to specify drains in some vaults. 

 Scope adjustment totaling $26,450 were made in order to provide necessary paths around or 

through the construction area either in addition to or as a modification to those specified for the 

bid. 

 

Project 21923; Replace Science Area Chiller Plant 

This transfer of $155,404 covers the cost of unforeseen conditions and design flaws.  The majority of this 

draw, $87,045, covers the cost of constructing an enclosure outside of the building to house the chemical 

storage tank after it was determined during construction that the tank would not fit inside the building as 

planned. The other large item consists of $40,689 to modify the routing of a storm drain pipe after an 

existing concrete encased duct bank was discovered that required a substantial increase in excavation and 

structural fill. 

 

 

Balance: 

Our analysis indicates that the current balance of $2,533,402 is adequate to complete the projects that 

have been authorized and it does not reflect an excess balance.  While the HTW Completion and other 

utility projects tend to require a greater level of contingency for unknown conditions than was budgeted 

under DFCM’s standard schedule, other projects tend to require less than was budgeted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   

 

Mr. Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Director  

May 26, 2017 

Page 3 

 

Representatives from the University of Utah will attend the Building Board meeting to address any 

questions the Board may have. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Kenneth E. Nye 

Deputy Chief Design & Construction Officer 

University of Utah 

 

Enclosures 

 

 

cc:  University of Utah Trustees 

       Jim Russell, Director DFCM 



Page 1

Professional Services Agreements

Awarded From April 19, 2017 - May 23, 2017 

Item 
Number

Project 
Number Project Name Firm Name Project Budget Contract Amount

Design
1 22101 Health Science Campus metering Project Mckinstry Essection LLC 120,000$          97,200$                
2 22001 TVC Office Relocation Architectural Nexus 1,159,397$       66,849$                
3 21933 DGH Music Library Remodel Range Architecture and Design 116,677$          10,617$                
4 22077 Dean of Students Suite, Room 270 Remodel MHTN Architects 173,469$          5,750$                  
5 22089 Marriott Center for Dance  - Rigging , HVAC and Lighting Cooper Roberts Simonsen Architects 490,290$          6,330$                  
6 22088 Libby Gardner Hall Lightning Upgrade Envision Engineering 560,742$          36,000$                
7 22062 H&I Lab Remodel FFKR Architects 249,691$          17,675$                
8 22094 Continuing Education Tenant Improvement Dixon and Associates 3,349,380$       90,000$                

Planning/Study/ Other
9 22103 Ambulatory Care Planning & Sugar House MOB Oliver and Harris Consulting LLP 30,000$            30,000$                
10 70132 UHOSP Infill Location Studies Tracy Stocking and Associates 40,000$            40,000$                
11 22099 Thatcher Chemistry BlDG Addition Feasibility Study Edwards and Daniels Architects 48,000$            48,000$                
12 70040 UUHC Hospital Vascular Lab Relocation MHTN Architects 31,825$            14,406$                
13 22056 Theater Department Facility Study MHTN Architects 45,380$            42,380$                
14 22074 Orthopadeic Research Lab Expansion Study Architectural Nexus 60,000$            40,000$                



Page 2

Construction Contracts

Awarded From April 19, 2017 - May 23, 2017 

Item 
Number

Project 
Number Project Name Firm Name Project Budget Contract Amount

Construction - New Space

1 70099 SICU Door and Windows Robert I Merrill Co 70,000$              69,010$                  
2 21710 Stadium Sound System Performance Audio 14,453,855$       21,373$                  
3 22093 HRE Computer Lab Remodel Mark Hamilton Construction 24,950$              22,821$                  
4 21925 Westridge Interior Remodel and Upgrade Hunt Construction of Utah 3,400,000$         1,700,000$             
5 21984 Bailey Exhibition Hall Remodel Pentalon Construction 257,935$            228,243$                
6 22090 PAB Improvements - room 110 marley Oasis Stage Werks Inc 40,020$              12,874$                  
7 21832 Building 56 Fire Sprinkler System Upgrade Delta Fire Systems 433,500$            236,500$                

8 21858 UUHC Flood Mittigation Project AllServices LLC 295,249$            236,590$                
   Construction - Site Improvement

Construction - Remodeling



Page 3

University Of Utah
Report Of Project Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of April 19, 2017 to May 23, 2017

PROJECT PROJECT TITLE TRANSFER DESCRIPTION FOR % OF
NUMBER AMOUNT CONTINGENCY TRANSFER CONSTR.

BUDGET
BEGINNING BALANCE 778,473.09   

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:
21223 Social & Behavioral Science - Seismic Upgrade at Basement & Part of Classroom Leve 92,889.29       Residual funds at project closeout 3.72%

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND:

CURRENT BALANCE OF PROJECT RESERVE: 871,362.38   



page 4

University Of Utah
Report Of Contingency Reserve Fund Activity
For the Period of April 19, 2017 to May 23, 2017

PROJ. NO. DESCRIPTION CURRENT TOTAL % OF PROJECT
TRANSFERS TRANSFERS CONSTR. STATUS

 FROM BUDGET
CONTINGENCY

BEGINNING BALANCE 3,107,751.29

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND
None

DECREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

NEW CONSTRUCTION
None

REMODELING
21582 Energy Projects Associated Work (60,071.22)          107,055.47       7.14% Construction
21642 HTW Distribution Completion (330,099.44)        340,379.06       5.06% Construction
21823 Social & Behavioral Science - Replace Chiller (2,639.00)            2,639.00           0.45% Construction
21827 Bldg 587 Heating & Cooling System Replacement (5,708.00)            5,708.00           0.34% Construction
21837 Fletcher Physics Bldg Chiller System Upgrade (20,428.00)          20,428.00         1.02% Construction
21923 Replace Science Area Chiller Plant (155,404.05)        197,242.55       7.89% Construction

ENDING BALANCE 2,533,401.58



 
 
 

1445 Old Main Hill           Logan, UT  84322-1445            Ph: (435) 797-1146            Fax: (435) 797-0710           www.usu.edu/vpbus 

May 26, 2017 
 

Jeff Reddoor, Building Board Manager  
Division of Facilities Construction 
   and Management 
State Office Building Room 4110 
PO Box 141160 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1284 
 
Dear Jeff: 
 
SUBJECT: USU Administrative Reports for the June 2017 Building Board Meeting 
 
The following is a summary of the administrative reports for USU for the period to 04/21/17 to 05/26/17. 
  
Professional Contracts, 4 contracts issued (Page 1) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Construction Contracts, 11 contracts issued (Page 2) 
Comments are provided on the report. 
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Page 3) 
Three projects needed funds from the contingency reserve fund during this reporting period.  Based on an 
internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Page 4) 
One project needed funds from and one contributed to the project reserve fund during this reporting 
period. Based on an internal risk assessment, the University finds this fund’s balance to be adequate. 
 
Current Delegated Projects List (Pages 5-7) 
Of USU’s 70 projects, 4 are pending, 14 are in the design/study phase, 34 are in construction, 16 are 
substantially complete and 2 are complete.  The two projects completed during this period were Concrete 
Replacement FY15 and Summit Hall Remodel. 
 
Representatives from Utah State University will attend the Building Board meeting to address any 
questions the Board may have. 
       

Sincerely,       
 

       
 
David T. Cowley 

      Vice President for 
        Business and Finance 
DTC/ah 
c:  Kimberly Henrie 
     Jim Russell 



Page 1 of 7

Project Name Firm Name A/E Budget Fee Amount Comments

1 HPER/Admin Nursing Remodel CRSA $29,734.00 $29,734.00 Architectural, mechanical and electrical design

2 USUE Blanding Housing Fire Safety Spectrum Engineers $45,662.00 $23,132.00 Design services for fire sprinkler and alarm system

3 OM Reroof South Wing Design West $5,000.00 $5,000.00 Architectural design services 

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

4 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY17 Dixon Information $130,137.00 $47.00 Air and bulk samples

Professional Contracts
Awarded From  04/21/17 to 05/26/17



Page 2 of 7

Project Firm Name Design Firm Const Budget Contract Amt Comments
1 OM Reroof South Wing Kendrick Brothers Roofing Design West $723,983.00 $723,983.00 Re-roof south section of Old Main

2 Univ Inn Slab and PTT Repair Spindler Construction USU Facilities Planning $188,512.00 $188,512.00 Repair concrete & post tensions on bridge
   and Design

3 Univ Inn to Widstoe Steamline Jacobsen Construction Van Boerum & Frank $770,000.00 $57,500.00 Pre-construction and CMGC

4 Classroom/Auditorium Upg FY16 USU Facilities Planning USU Facilities Planning $270,877.00 $45,392.00 Remove carpet Engr Lab, consoles MCC Bldg 
   and Design    and Design

5 USUE Blanding Campus Mechanical USU Facilities Planning USU Facilities Planning $45,662.00 $24,116.00 Replace fire alarm panel Tech Bldg
   and Design    and Design

6 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY16 USU Facilities Planning USU Facilities Planning $183,504.00 $4,572.00 Install fixed roof access ladder Water Lab
   and Design    and Design

   MISCELLANEOUS CONTRACTS

7 USUE Career Center Upgrades Environmental Abatement $201,905.00 $180,482.00 Asbestos abatement MCC Bldg

8 VCT Tile Replacement in Hallways Eagle Environmental $139,496.00 $80,588.00 Floor and mastic removal Engr Lab

9 UBC Infrastructure Improvements Kaysville City Corp $1,101,214.00 $40,000.00 Work on rail trail UBC

10 Sign System FY15 Interpretive Graphics Signs $43,193.00 $9,778.00 QUAD district building signs

11 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY17 Eagle Environmental $130,137.00 $8,550.00 Asbestos abatement Bus Bldg, Skaggs 112

Construction Contracts
Awarded From 04/21/17 to 05/26/17



Page 3 of 7

Total
Transfers % to %

Current To (From) Construction Completed
Project Title Transfers Contingency Budget Project Status (Paid)

BEGINNING BALANCE $647,728.44

INCREASES TO CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

   None

DECREASES FROM CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND

USUE Career Center Upgrades (171,904.75) (171,904.75) 20.61% Construction 10.61%
   (asbestos abatement in main, 2nd floor hallways
      and classrooms MCC Bldg Price )
USUE Geary Theatre Upgrades FY16, FY17 (36,557.00) (36,557.00) 1.85% Construction 53.03%
   (sewer lateral investigation; stage curtain replacement)
Kaysville Building Addition - contingency split 42% (1,074.91) (6,047.78) 27.00% Construction 22.09%
   (additional drywall; extend ceiling & soffit)

ENDING BALANCE $438,191.78

Report of Contingency Reserve Fund
From 04/21/17 to 05/26/17



Page 4 of 7

% of
Transfer Construction

Project Title Amount Description Budget

BEGINNING BALANCE $384,032.36

INCREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   Concrete Replacement FY15 11,218.19              Close Project 5.39%

DECREASES TO PROJECT RESERVE FUND
   Univ Inn Slab and PTT Repair (1,988.06) Award contract 1.28%

ENDING BALANCE $393,262.49

Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity
From 04/21/17 to 05/26/17



Page 5 of 7

 

Project Project
Number Project Name Phase Budget

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT/IMPROVEMENT
A28999 Building Commissioning FY14 Sub Completion 196,296            
A29004 Emergency Generator FY14 Sub Completion 250,390            
A31321 Classroom/Auditorium Upgrade FY15 Construction 276,045            
A31322 Concrete Replacement FY15 Complete 299,185            
A31325 Emergency Generator FY15 Pending 229,872            
A31328 HVAC Controls Upgrade FY15 Pending 228,311            
A31333 Planning & Design FY15 Sub Completion 175,075            
A31334 Sign System FY15 Sub Completion 47,193              
A31335 Site & Safety Lighting Construction 322,525            
A33654 Romney Stadium Scoreboard Construction 2,680,347        
A34107 Kaysville Building Addition Construction 2,807,644        
A34283 Chilled Water Infrastructure FY16 Construction 357,878            
A34284 Classroom/Auditorium Upgrades FY16 Construction 292,487            
A34285 Concrete Replacement FY16 Sub Completion 243,096            
A34287 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY16 Construction 191,004            
A34290 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY16 Sub Completion 1,180,859        
A34294 Planning & Design FY16 Sub Completion 129,790            
A34295 RBW/Family Life Chilled Water Piping Sub Completion 841,711            
A34296 South Farm Fire Lane/Hydrants FY16 Construction 498,206            
A34298 UBC Infrastructure Improvements Construction 1,193,514        
A34299 Univ Inn/Widstoe Steam Line Replacement Design 75,000              
A34300 VCT Tile Replacement in Hallways Construction 328,890            
A34301 Vet Science Electrical Upgrade FY16 Design 98,753              
A34468 Roosevelt Ed Ctr Aggie Station Remodel Design 51,770              
A35569 Townhouse Stucco Proj Bldg 3  Pending 139,470            
A35676 Merrill Cazier Lib Testing Ctr  Construction 2,108,650        
A35677 PDP Air Handling Units  Construction 404,562            

05/26/17
Current Delegated Projects List



Page 6 of 7

A35868 Summit Hall Remodel Complete 1,146,596        
A35971 PDP Refreshment Construction 797,129            
A36118 Utility Meter Upgrades FY16 Design 91,500              
A36388 North Core Utilities Replacement & Tunnel Expansion Sub Completion 3,594,480        
A36466 BNR Roadway Replacement Sub Completion 329,926            
A36467 Old Main Reroof-Center Section Sub Completion 766,381            
A36468 Hydraulics Lab Landscape FY17 Construction 93,033              
A36469 Medium Voltage Upgrade FY17 Construction 1,222,100        
A36734 Classroom Upgrades FY17  Construction 275,847            
A36735 Concrete Replacement FY17  Sub Completion 380,194            
A36736 Bike Racks/Site Furn FY17 Construction 45,662              
A36737 Access Control FY17 Sub Completion 72,795              
A36738 Health, LS, Code, Asbestos FY17  Construction 137,637            
A36739 E Stadium Restroom Reroof  Sub Completion 50,866              
A36740 FAV Photo Lab Safety Ventilation  Construction 367,000            
A36741 Planning & Design FY17 Design/Study 70,457              
A36742 Univ Inn to Widstoe Steamline-Construction  Construction 788,400            
A37078 FAV 210/215 Remodel Phase II  Sub Completion 151,007            
A37302 South Farm New Dairy Barn  Construction 1,212,935        
A37631 Student Living Center Snack Shop Design 213,530            
A37673 Huntsman Library Huntsman Hall Construction 203,833            
A37740 Roosevelt Ed Ctr Atrium Remodel Construction 618,663            
A38008 Blue Square Parking Expansion Construction 546,244            
A38143 Student Organic Farm Facility Design 146,666            
A38144 Bus Bldg East Office Remodel Construction 619,748            
A38594 Lillywhite Interior Remodel Design 1,026,000        
A38598 Edith Bowen Playground Design 386,820            
A38666 Access Control FY18 Pending 382,750            
A38777 IC Irrigation Trunk Line Design 252,000            
A38903 Education Suite 109 Remodel Design 187,480            
A38923 Animal Science Math Remodel Construction 131,098            
A38970 Aggie Village Detention System Construction 354,463            
A38975 OM Reroof South Wing (NEW PROJECT) Construction 734,842            
A38988 Univ Inn Slab & PTT Repair Construction 176,988            
A39004 HPER Admin/Nursing Remodel (NEW PROJECT) Design 432,303            



Page 7 of 7

C11368 USUE Mechanical/Lighting upgrade Sub Completion 877,397            
C11461 USUE Infrastructure/Automation Upgrade Construction 461,857            
C11508 USUE Career Center Upgrades Construction 1,006,139        
C11614 USUE Blanding Campus Mechanical FY16 Design 45,662              
C11615 USUE Geary Theatre Bldg Upgrades FY16 Construction 3,957,307        
C11709 USUE Soccer Fields Construction 609,851            
C11714 USUE Site Lighting Phase 2 Construction 230,100            
C11781 USUE Blanding Housing Fire Safety (NEW PROJECT) Design 170,400            

TOTAL (70) $41,014,609



Utah State Building Board 
 

 
 
         Gary R. Herbert    

                   Governor 3120 State Office Building 
 Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 

 Phone  (801) 538-3010 
 Fax  (801) 538-3844 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To  Utah State Building Board 
From:  Jeff Reddoor 
Date:  June 7, 2017 
Subject: Administrative Report for DFCM 
Presenter: Jim Russell, DFCM Director 
 
The following is a summary of the Administrative Report for DFCM 
 
Lease Report (Pages 1 - 3) 
No significant items 
 
Professional Services Agreements, 24 Agreements Issued (Pages 4 - 5) 
The Professional Services Agreements awarded during this period consist of: 
15 Design Agreements, 9 Planning/Study/Other Agreements. 
No significant items 
 
Construction Contracts, 36 Contracts Issued (Pages 6 - 8) 
The Construction Contracts awarded during this period consist of: 
4 New Space Contracts, 20 Remodeling Contracts, 5 Paving/Roofing Contracts, 7 Other 
 
Item #15, Green River Golf Course Clubhouse Re-roof 
Additional funds from unallocated roofing were used to award contract  
 
Item #16, Goblin Valley State Park Overlook Restrooms Replacement  
Project Reserve Funds were used to award construction contract 
 
Item #24, SUU New Business Building 
This is a CM/GC agreement, the balance of the construction costs will be added by future  
change orders.   
 
Report of Contingency Reserve Fund (Pages 9 – 40)  
Increases 
Increases are from budgeted contingency transfers and decrease change orders/modifications 
 



 
DFCM Administrative Reports 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Decreases, Capital Development 
Capital Development started period with $4,184,213 and ended with $3,418,464, with 8 transfers 
to projects totaling $765,749. 
 
University of Utah Crocker Science Center  
This transfer of $206,847 covers corrections to change orders #5 and #9 from the previous 
draws, and the State’s share of change order #11.  See attached pages # 10 - 15 for details and 
contract summary. 
 
Decreases, Capital Development Continued 
Dixie ATC New Permanent Campus Building   
This transfer of $174,335 covers the State’s share of change orders #7 and 9.  See attached pages 
#16 - 21 for details and contract summary 
 
University of Utah Infrastructure Upgrades  
This transfer of $156,619 covers the State’s share of change orders #24 and 25.  See attached 
pages #22 - 30 for details and contract summary 
 
USU Business Building Addition/Remodel  
This transfer of $90,358 covers change order #37.  See attached pages #31 - 34 for details and 
contract summary 
 
Decreases, Capital Improvement 
Capital Improvement started period with $5,738,487 and ended with $5,501,395, with 18 
transfers to projects totaling $237,092 and 0 transfers to the fund.   
 
Governor’s Mansion Kitchen Remodel, Basement Remodel, and Mechanical Upgrades   
This transfer of $73,025 is for the revised CBE with FY’18 improvement funds, causing a 
reduced contingency budget and change order #1.  See attached pages #35 - 37 for details and 
contract summary 
 
SUU Multiple Buildings Fire Alarm Panel Upgrade 
This transfer of $55,523 covers MOU change order #1.  See attached pages #38 - 40 for details 
and contract summary 
 
Report of Project Reserve Fund Activity (Pages 41 - 43) 
The development project reserve had one increase of $101,768 and one decrease of $250,000 
ending with a balance of $1,137,624, and the capital improvement project reserve fund had 9 
transfers to the fund of $94,079 and 7 transfers out totaling $744,644, ending with a balance of 
$4,701,269.    
 



DFCM Administrative Reports 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Increases 
The increases reflect savings on projects that were transferred to Project Reserve per statute. 
 
Decreases 
The decreases are to award construction contracts that are over budget, as well as the re-
allocation of capital improvement funds approved by the Board in the May meeting for Snow 
College.  
  
This report also includes a total by Agency/Institution for increases and decreases to this reserve 
fund, on a rolling year basis.  We will keep this updated, so you can see who has given and 
drawn from the Project Reserve Fund over the past year.   
 
 Contingency Reserve Fund Analysis (Pages 44- 53) 
This is a quarterly report for the State Building Board, which shows an analysis of estimated 
future demands on the contingency reserve fund.  It should be noted that this reserve fund only 
applies to projects funded with State General funds, education funds, or general obligation 
bonds.  The analysis assumes that contingency funds are utilized evenly over the life of the 
project.  In reality, some projects have greater draws early in the project and others late in the 
project.  So it is reasonable to assume that this averages into an even utilization of the 
contingency budget over the life of the project.  The analysis lists all open construction contracts 
on open projects that have contributed to and are eligible to draw from the contingency reserve 
fund, along with the percentage completion of the construction contract.  The current projection 
is a deficit balance of ($3,259,316).  The major causes for the higher projected deficit are from 
large draws in March for the UVU New Classroom project, the DATC Permanent Campus 
Building, and the Fairpark Days of 47 Rodeo Arena.   
 
Statewide Funds Reports (Pages #54 - 60) 
No significant items 
 
 
DDW: jr: ccn 
Attachments 
 



-1-



-2-



-3-



-4-



-5-



-6-



-7-



-8-



-9-



-10-



-11-



-12-



-13-



-14-



-15-



-16-



-17-



-18-



-19-



-20-



-21-



-22-



-23-



-24-



-25-



-26-



-27-



-28-



-29-



-30-



-31-



-32-



-33-



-34-



-35-



-36-



-37-



-38-



-39-



-40-



-41-



-42-



-43-



-44-



-45-



-46-



-47-



-48-



-49-



-50-



-51-



-52-



-53-



-54-



-55-



-56-



-57-



-58-



-59-



-60-


	June 7, 2017 BB Agenda
	1 Approval of Minutes from the April 5, 2017 Business Meeting
	2 Approval of Minutes from the May 3, 2017 Board Meeting
	3 DHS-USDC: Building Demolition Request
	4 DHS-DJJS: Request for Programming of the Wasatch Youth Center
	5 DHS-DJJS: Capital Improvement Transfer Request
	6 DFCM: Capital Improvement Reallocation Request for USDC
	7 University of Utah: Request for Approval of Energy Efficiency Improvements
	8 University of Utah: Request for Approval of the Jon M. Huntsman Center Scoreboard Replacement
	9 State Building Board: Facility Condition Assessment Program and Preventative Maintenance Audit Annual Report
	10 Administrative Reports for the University of Utah and Utah State University
	11 DFCM Administrative Report
	ADPCE97.tmp
	BUSINESS MEETING
	Guests in Attendance:
	 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE AND CHANGES IMPACTING THE BOARD
	Chair Carnahan opened the floor to Sen. Harper and Rep. Froerer to address issues that came out of the legislative session.  Rep. Froerer began by focusing on bonding issues, specifically related to the DXATC project.  Bonding can only be approved thr...
	The second issue involves the DPS Brigham City building which was a last minute appropriation request.  There was not enough research completed in the initial stages of this request.  It was later determined that the request was approximately $1M unde...
	Sen. Harper would like UCAT to bring forward recommendations to consider as the Building Board and DFCM work on formalizing the bond verification process.
	Mr. Snow asked Rep. Forerer and Sen. Harper to comment on whether they would like the Board to require a certification of funds for non-State projects.  Currently, there is no intent language addressing this procedure, however the Board believes it is...
	Commissioner Woolstenhulme confirmed that the Board of Trustee’s met last week and agreed to move forward with the lease bond agreement under new intent language for the DXATC project.  He thanked everyone for their work on this issue.  Commissioner W...
	Rep. Froerer recommends that additional information be collected to certify donor contributions.  He referenced a $47.5M donation for the University of Utah’s MED Center that would no longer be available if the State did not commit.  The IGG requests ...
	The Board recommends that Mr. Reddoor work with counsel to draft a rule to certify funds for non-State funded projects.
	Mr. Snow expressed concerns with both the use of student fees and the criticality of need for Salt Lake Community’s request of a new student center.  Rep. Froerer has concerns with using student fees, especially for infrastructure requests.  Chair Car...
	Mr. Reddoor requested comments from Rep. Forerer and Sen. Harper on an allowable percentage of project overages and if there should be a set percentage for when a project should return back for legislative approval.  Mr. Russell stated the standard le...
	Rep. Forerer asked Mr. Reddoor to provide an update on O&M.  The Board is now able to capture costs on an individual building level, approximately $207M in O&M expenditures were reported for FY16.  A database has been created to house these reported c...
	Mr. Reddoor informed the Board of a rule change to the dates for when an agency can revise a project request.  Currently this deadline occurs in May.  This rule will be changed to allow for revisions up until the cost estimate is completed from DFCM. ...
	The final legislative update impacting the Board is that Mr. Reddoor’s position has been changed to an appointed Director position.  Mr. Bachman also informed the Board that procurement rules will also be developed for the Board.  There are also a num...





